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Success. As hs was of sound bodily health, 
Feri area eeecmer aie gula aulte 

g y cover his large f e 

His field was large indeed, and the necd for additional 

men was scvor presonte 

Bushler went east to the Synodical convention in 188) 

and agein put forth pleas for more men on tho coast. No 

help was Immodiately forthcoming, but another Pastor, 

Moritz Claus, had come to Oregon to regain his health in 

1885. He was to become the socond resular pastor in the 

area in two yoars. At about this time also (1385-36), a 

pastoral conference was formed, called alternately the 

CGallfornla Goncordia Conference or the Pacific Conference. 

The men in Oreson were included with Buehler sorving as 

its first ehadrman.?! The distances involved in such a 

"local" arrancement wore tremendous, much less the dis- 

trict connections (Western - Ste Louis), and realizing 

this, the Western District Convention of 1885 urzed by 

ssolution that the arca form its own district. 

the Delorate Synod met at Fort Wayne in 1887. Reve 

de He Theiss of Alemeda, California, attended as the 

coast represontative, and after presenting an appeal for 

more men, was given official encovragement for the forming 

of a separate district. Upon his return the St. Paulus 
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congrogation called on all the congrenations on the 

Pacific coast to assemble at Sen Francisco for the purpose 

of Qistrict organization. On September 21, 1837, this was 

accomplished under the leadership of Dre He Ce Schliwan, 

President of Synod. Four consregations, four voting pastors, 

five advisory pastors, and two teachers constituted the 

first roster of this now synodical district. Buchler was 

elected president of the District as woll as cheirman of 

the Mission Board. 3° 

Oregon formed the northern conferenee of the district. 

Early In 1367 M. Glaus had regained his health sufficite 

ently to serves the church and was called to the Shorwood- 

Cornelius field, In addition Fr. Selle, a candidate, was 

called into the ecastern area of Washington-Oregon with 

Pendleton, Oregon, as his headguarterse Soth Claus and 

Dooring attended the founding session of the district, 

Selle being unable to because of £lIness.>? Doering 

worked as a Reisepredizer, using vortland as his heade 

quarters. Prospects were looking up for the now District 

and its Northern conferencoe 

While Doering had besun his work in Portland and 

preached there first, the work among the settlements wost 
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and downstate took up the greater portion of his time. 

However, he besan to conduct regular afternoon services 

in Portland while serving Sherwood and Blooming, and in 

1885 he felt the group had sufficient strength to orsanize. 

This was accomplished in January of 19386 with ten voters 

Signing a constitution. Thus, Zion Evangelical Lutheran 

Church came into being. Immediately thousht was turned to 

constructing a church building, for although afternoon 

services were still being held, the rented site was not 

adequate. After five years a building was constructed 

\lmost immediately after the founding of the new Son
 

district, however, tragedy struck in the continued illness 

of Selle. ifo was compelled to travel east in 1338 for 

botter medical care and died enroute. Thus, the promising 

mission ficlds in eastern Oregon suffered=--a condition 

which has persisted to this pressnt day. To rolieve this 

need, President Suehler came up to Iregon in 1539 to take 

a first hand look at the situation, with a view to calling 

another man into the Western Oregon area. The previous 

yoar (1585) J. H. Theiss had travoled through the area to 

report to the mission board of the activity there. Candi- 

date J, Shlen of the Seminary was called to serve this 

area. Arriving in California that year, he was ordained 

by Buehler in St. Paulus and then went north to serve in 

the Eastern area of the field.   
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Meanwhile, Bhlien, leaving Idaho for California for 

Peasons of henlth, stopped in Tacoma, Washington, sn route. 

Although it was evident thet he head not intended to remain, 

on June 1, 1590, he preached to a small group of Lutherans 

there and after the service nine men remained to orcenize 

and adopt a constitution for Zion Lutheran Church of that 

city. The following Sunday officers were elected and the 

decision to call a man was reached. Candidate H. Haserodt 

was called and accepted, being ordained in &t. Paulus, San 

Francisco, by Buehler in September. The next month ho 

arrived, after also examining the Seattle arca for mission 

bossibilitics. Uhlen, meanwhile, continued to California, 

was installed at Fresno, and died shortly thoreafter. 

Thus, a man they had hoped to gain for the work in Bastern 

Orcgon again was called home by the Lord, but his sround 

work paved the way for the first resident liissouri Synod 

pastor in the Puget Sound arca, 4? 

Thus, notwithstanding the additions to the field, the 

total number remained almost constante Claus had left the 

Sherwood=Blooming field to go to California, and He Ae Ge 

Paul had beon called to repleco hime In additions, Je we 

Theiss had accepted the call to serve a new congregation 

  

LO"Partieth Anniversary Booklet, Zion Evangelical 
Lutheran Church, Tacoma, Washington” (on filo at Concordia 
Historical Institute, Ste Louis, 190).    
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Doering hed started in Portland. This parish lay on the 

east side of the Willamette River, in what was called 

Albina. Doering began his work there in 1888, althouch 

it appesrs that a man by the name of Dietrich--an inde- 

Pendent--nad sorved among these psople for a year or so 

previously. With tho arrival in 1889 of Theiss, the 

congregation ran into some difficulties and e group withe 

drew. However, by the following fall, the group and 

Theiss were in a position to buy the chureh building from 

thosc who had remainsd, and the actual organization of 

Trinity, Portland, took place in December of 1890, 

In the meantime, Haserodt of Tacoma explorad the 

terrltory wide about him, preaching in Seattle, Everett, 

Snohomish, Sontralia, Chohalis, and other places. ‘Since 

Ehien had been foreed to leave the Zastern Oregon area 

because of his poor health, Candidate Ne Baade, who was 

ordained by Buehler in 1890 at St. Paulus for work in the 

Sacramento area, wont instead to the Puget Sound region, 

there initiating work in Seattle and organizing Trinity 

church in 1890,44 

Thus, the work of the district was expanding. The 

third convention (the second hed been held in 1359 at 

  

Lets -n-spots in the History of Oregon and “Washington 
District” (1933). Mimoographed booklet on file at Concordia 
Historical Institute, St. “ouise  



  

38 

St. Paulus with Buehlor as essayist and Schwan representing 

Synod) found marked improvement in the supply situation, 

althoush hardly scnough for the need. The year 1890 saw the 

Northern conference consisting of soven pastorse | mts 

small numbor brought about a continual shifting of forces 

to moet needs from place to placee The economic condi-= 

tions which were <ripping tho nation during the end of 

  

Harrison's presidency and inesption of Cleveland, also 

Yeached out into the Northwest, and many prouising settlc- 

ments had to be abandoned to meet changin: conditions.!@ 

Eighteen hundred end ninety-one brought only one 

additional man to the Northwost, CG. J. Heuer, who took up 

worl: in castern Oreson, serving Pendleton and Warren. 

Southern Orezon had roceived a man to work in two parishes, 

Kt. Angel and Salem whieh Doering had been sorving on a 

Sporadic basis. Ge Meyer was ordained and installed by 

Doering for this work in 1590. An industrious worker, he   almost imuediately organized a school and explored further 

south into the Grant's Pass and Medford area where he 

bocan holding services. While Mte Angel was his home base, 

Heyer succeeded in establishing a solid organization in 

Medford, so that the following year, Candidate J. He Witte 

was ordained by Buehler and sent to that area, in addition 
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to serving the other towns to tho south which Meyer had 

explored, 

However, Sherwood falt strong enough to call a man of 

tts own (prior to this Paul nad been serving it fron 

Blooming), and Heuer left the Eastern Oregon arca in response 

to-that call, Witte, in turn, was called to rsplace Theiss 

in Portland who was foreed to resign because of a throat 

condition. Thus, once more two growing areas were left 

without men to serve them so that established consrega= 

tions might be served; this tragic condition prevailed   
to the degrce that both arcas (southern end scastern 

Oregon) have suffered to this prosont day. 

A veplacemoent for eastern work at Endicott, Washins- 

ton, was found in Candidate F. Sehoknecht, who 1n 1892 took 

up the work seattered about the entire areas ‘This work at 

Endleott proved fruitful, developing into a fairly stable 

congregation and replscine Yarren and Pendleton as tha   center of the work in the eastern part of the district. 

At the district convention of that year (the fourth convon=- 

tion), sgein in San Francisco at St. Paulus, Buehler planned 

to make a determined effort to survey more freauontly the 

northern field. The difficulty of this was becoming 

inersasingly evident, and agitation was being made for a | 

soparate district organization. Mon had been coming into 

the district, but at a dribble, and rapid changes made the   
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problem of serving such ea wide area inersasingly difficult. 

When it is considered that the area Buchler had to survoy 

stretched from northern to southern boundary of the United 

States and east into Utah, Nevada, and portions of Montana, 

the demands made upon him and his devotion to these certain= 

ly paint sn impressive picture. 

In the yoars immodietely Pollowinz new fields were 

opened In Eastern Washington with ths coming in 1893 of F. 

Verwiebs te Spokano, “Washington. ‘There he began work 

Which lsd to the foundine of St. John's congrezation. In 

thet same yoar Candidate W. Behrons introduced the Missouril 

Synod to Salt Lake City, an area just surveyed by Buchler. 

Both these men, however, were to leave these earvas within 

the next two years, and the work was once more abandonad. 

In justice it must be said that in almost every instance 

a strong sround work had been laid, and if there was a 

renowal of the work witnin a reasonable period, «roth 

resulted from those origins, Snohomish, Washington, was 

organized in 1392, and was served by Saade from Seattle, 

and then later *rom Tacoma. It was to wait six years, 

however, before 16 could secure a resident Pastor. 

-The years 1895=97 saw only tyvo new men onter the 

area. Candidate H. Hacist was called by the Mission Board 

to take up work in Oreson, and he became the first resident 

Pastor in Salsm. Tho work progressed, but difficulties 

resulting from a factional strife in thse congregation loft 
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it unserved again in 1897 after the resignation of Hagist 

due to illness. Rov. Th. Fleckenstein was called to re= 

Place J, Witte, who was foreed to resign bocauss of throat 

trouble. He was installed at Trinity, Portland, in 1897. 

Nuch of the slack during this period was due to the 

general sconomic conditions of the country as a whole. 

Thus, the needs of the Northwast were once more unable to 

be mot. 

The following year, 1898, brousht four new candidates 

to the arca in an endeavor to take up tne slack caused by 

the previous years. Of these, however, only H. Ebeling, 

who went to Snohomish as their first resident pastor, 

could bs classified as bringins a new spot into resident 

Service, And oven this was misleading, for he had to take 

over the Seattle and Everett work which had previously 

been handled from Seattle by Baadee Candidates J. Duchow, 

ie Spleiss, and W%. Lankow all filled vacanciss in wsoll- 

established congrezations==-Mte Angel, Sherwood, and 

Tacoma=-thus simply maintaining the status quo without 

any increase in rogular stations served. 

Not only was the slow incroase a consideration, but 

active work of other Lutheran groups in the Northwest was 

growing rapidly. In 18380 the Augustana Syned began an 

expansion of the Pacific coast which resulted in the 

founding of the Pacific Conference in Tacoma in 19388,   

 


